


Table of Contents

List of Ilustrations, i
Acknowledgements vi
IntrodUuction e 1
The Building e 2
Colleton Square: The Marsh North of the LittleCreek 8
Prominent Families: The Jonesesandlegares_ 16
Marble Yards and Stone Cutters_ 22
Conflagrations and Confederacy: The Great Fire of 1861 and the Civil War 26
Anson Street’s Beer ABe ... ... . . e 29
Charleston Dries Up.____.... e 36
Ice, Antiques and Fine Dining: 12 Anson inthe 20t Century . 41

Bibliography 43

Appendix: Annotated ChainofTitle . ... .. 47




List of Illustrations

Page i

Figure Number
Construction of new doorways and balcony on west fagade of 12 Anson. 2

1.

10.

1L

Source: City of Charleston. Charleston Board of Architectural
Review (BAR) Charleston, SC. Vertical Files.

12 Anson Street west fagade, September 2011,
Source: Author.

12 Anson Street west fagade, 1990.
Source. City of Charleston, Charleston Board of Architectural
Review (BAR) Charleston, SC. Vertical Files.

North fagade of 12 Anson, September 2011,
Source: Author.

Western fagade of 12 Anson, September 2011,
Source; Author,

South fagade and rooftop addition, 12 Anson, September 2011,
Source; Author,

Print of Germania Brewing Company brew house, office, stock house,
and ice factory, 1915.

Source. Files of Michell & Smith, Attorneys, Germania Brewery
Bankruptcy Records (1915-1918). Charleston, SC.

South Carolina Historical Society.

North fagade of 12 Anson, 1990
Source: Author.

Ground floor dining room, Anson Restaurant, September 2011,
Source: Author,

1884 Sanborn Map of Palmetto Brewery on Anson Street
Source: Sanbomn Fire Company. Sanborn Fire Company Map
depicting Anson/Guignard/Hayne Streets, June 1888, University
Libraries Digital Collection. http://digital.tcl.ec.edu

[Accessed September 6, 2011].

Plan of 12 Anson Street as it stands, 2011.
Source: City of Charleston, Charleston Board of Architectural
Review (BAR) Charleston, SC. Vertical Files.




12.

13,

14.

15.
16.
17,

18.

19.

20.

21.

Grant of Lott 80 in the Grand Modell of Charles Town from the
Surveyor General, to Peter, Thomas and James Colleton. March 1680.
Source: Bates, Susan Baldwin and Harriot Chaves Leland. Proprietary
Recerds of South Carolina, Volume III, Charleston, SC:

The History Press, 2007. Page 100.

“A Platt of Charles Town,” by Henry A, M. Smith. Copy, 1903.
Source: Charleston County Public Library, South Carolina
Room Map Collection.

“Map of Charles Town from a Survey by Edward Crisp, 1704.”
Source: Jonathan Poston, The Buildings of Charleston: A Guide to
the City’s Architecture. Columbia, SC: University of Scuth
Carolina Press, 1997. Page 47,

“The Ichnography of Charles-Town at High Water,” by Bishep,
Source: Roberts and W.H. Toms. London, 1739. Charleston County
Public Library, South Carolina Room Map Collectien.

Gabriel Guignard (1708-1758) .
Source: www.ancestry.com [Accessed November 5, 2011]

Source: www.ancestry.com [Accessed November 5, 2011]

“Plan of Colleton Square,” 1742 (Copy: 1882) .. .. . ... ..
Source: Charleston County. Records of the Register Mesne
Conveyance (RMC). Charleston, SC. Deed Book K4, Page 58.

Also: McCrady Plat Collection, Charleston, SC. Plat number
0619, original 142, redrawn 1882.

“Ichnography of Charlesteon, South Carolina,” by the Phoenix Fire
Company, 1788.

Source: Charleston County Public Library, South Carolina

Room Map Collection.

“Charles Cotesworth Pinckney,” portrait by Henry Bainbridge, c. 1773.

Source: National Portrait Gatlery. www.history.army.mil
[Accessed November 8, 2011]

50 Broad Street, 1899.

Source: W.A. Clark, History of Banking Institutions Organized

in South Carolina Prior to 1860. Reprint. New York: Arno Press, 1980,

www.books.google.com [Accessed November 3, 2011] Page 58.

Pageii




22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

of a Market, 1788
Source: Charleston County. Records of the Register Mesne
Conveyance (RMC). Charleston, SC. Deed Book A6, Page 232,

Elm Grove Plantation, [928.
Source: Linda Dayhoff Smith. Gare Lepare: Some Descendants of
the Legares of South Carolina, Easely, SC:

Southern Historical Press, 1987. Page 58.

Elm Grove Plantation interior cupboard, 1928,
Source: Linda Dayhoff Smith. Page 59.

Daniel Legare, Junior, 1838.
Source; Linda Dayhoff Smith. Page 92,

Map of the Burnt District, 1838.
Source: Charleston Courier, May 1, 1838,

Detail of 1842 Bridgens and Allen Map
Source: “An Original Map of the City of Charleston,” by RP Bridgens
And Robert Allen. Charleston County Public Library, South Carolina
Room Map Collection.

Magnolia Cemetery, September 2011, e

Source: Author,

Gravestone of Eliza Lucilla Simons, d. 1849, Circular Churchyard,

Source. Author.

Detail of David A. Walker’s stonecutter stamp, Circular Churchyard
Source: Author

and notice of James, William and Robert’s new businesses.
Source: Charleston Courier, January 1, 1837.

Headstone in Circular Congregational Churchyard bearing stamp
of David A. Walker.
Source: Author.

Robert D, White’s Marble & Stone Yard, Advertisement
Source: Courtesy Historic Charleston Foundation Archives.

18

19

19

.22

22

Page iii




34.

3s.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41,

42,

43.

Detail of list of properties destroyed in the Fire of 1861.
Source: Charleston Mercury, December 20, 1861,

“Ruins of the Pinckney Mansion After the Great Fire of 1861,”
photograph by George M. Barnard, ca 1864,

Source: New York Public Library System, Digital Gallery.
www.digitalgallery nypl.org [Accessed November 12, 2011]

“Charleston Birds-Eye View,” painting, by C.N. Drie, 1872. Detail.
Source: Library of Congress. www.loc.gov. [Accessed September 17, 2011]

Palmetto Brewery Advertisement, 1886,
Source: Alexander M. Cochran, The Charleston Farthquake, 1886,
Lowcountry Digital Library. www.lowcountrydigital, library.cofc.edu.
[Accesssed September 30, 2011]

John CH Claussen (1823-1910).

26

Source: The South Carolina and West Indian Exposition Passbook, 1901-1902,

Lowcountry Digital Library. www.lowcountrydigital.library.cofc.edu
[Accessed November 3, 2011]

West Side of Anson Street: City Tax Assessors Ward Book, 1876-1980.
Source: City Tax Assessment Ward Books,
Charleston SC, Ward 3, 1876-1879. Page 3.

Corner of Market and Meeting Streets after the earthquake of 1886,
Source: Alexander M. Cochran, The Charleston Earthquake, 1886. Page 24,

North Market Street, facing Meeting, after the 1886 earthquake, .

Source: Archive of the Historic Charleston Foundation.
Lowcountry Digital Library. www.lowcountrydigital.library.cofc.edu
[Accessed November 10,2011]

“Palmetto Brewery Earthquake Beer” Advertisement

Source: Alexander M. Cochran, The Charleston Earthquake, 1886. Page 67.

Lowcountry Digital Library. www.lowcountrydigital.library.cofc.edu
[Accessed November 10, 2011]

“De La Vergne Patent Refrigerating and lce-Making System” Advertisement,

Source. Alexander Wallis-Taylor, Refrigeration and lce Making,
London: Crosby, Lockwood & Son, 1896, Page iii.

.32

32

Page iv




44,

45.

46,

47,

48.

49,

Palmetto Brewery bottle,
Source: Timmons Pettigrew, Charleston Beer: A High-Gravity
History of Lowcountry Brewing. Charleston, SC:

The History Press, 2011, Page 29,

1888 Sanbom Map of Palmetto Brewery and surrounding area.
Source: Sanbom Fire Company, Maps depicting Anson/
Guignard/Hayne Streets, 1888. Charleston County Public Library,
South Carolina Room, microfilm.,

“Booze in the Bay May Shock Fishes,” news article.
Source: Charleston Courier, September 5, 1913,

Germania Brewery Receipt Header, 1916.
Source: Files of Michell & Smith, Attorneys. Germania Brewery
Bankruptcy Records (1915-1918). Charleston, SC.

South Carolina Historical Society.

“Breweries Must Give Up Business,” news article.
Germania Brewery “champagne-style” bottle.

Source: “South Carolina Breweries/Beer Bottling Companies.”
www brucemobley.com {Accessed November 16, 2011]

Source: From vertical files located at the S.C. Room, Charleston County Public Library.

Pagev




Page vi

Acknowledgements

This project has been an incredible opportunity to learn about a very interesting building and the
people that surround it. However, it has been an even greater opportunity to meet some of the most
informed, helpful, and insightful people in the city of Charleston. I cannot in good conscience submit this
work without recognizing their immense amount of aid and guidance. Their support of me and my
classmates as students seeking mentorship is invaluable. They include our always cheerful, always
helpful research professor, Katherine Saunders of the Historic Charleston Foundation, archivist Nic Butler
of the Charleston Archive, as well as the entire staft of the South Carolina Room at the Charleston County
Library, archivist Karen Emmons of the Historic Charleston Foundation, and our professors at the
Clemson University/College of Charleston MSHP Program: Kristopher B. King, Carter Hudgins, Ashley
Wilson, James Ward, Ralph Muldrow, and Francis Ford. A century from now, when some meandering
researcher makes a query for your names, my hope is that they will find a record of every kindness,
encouragement and guidance you have offered all of us. Thank you for your help!

I also have to express my appreciation to Mr. Timothy H. Cook: Thank you for your patience,

and for being my sounding board. None of this narrative would make sense without you.




Page |1

Introduction

Among the iconic buildings of Charleston, one can easily find grand single houses with pillared
piazzas, imposing public buildings of stone and marble, and graceful antebellum mansions. In all
likeliness, the visitor might also seck the stalwart fortress walls of Fort Sumter, or the colonial cemetery
of Circular Congregational Church — relics of events made tangible by their endurance. To walk down a
Charleston street is to interact with history, to converse with these old buildings and take something
meaningful away from them. Each structure, however majestic or humble or unassuming, has its own
historical idiosyncrasies and surprises awaiting the ear of a curious listener. Illustrated in the following
pages is the story of one of those buildings.

The story of the building that sits on the southeast corner of Anson and Guignard Streets is
somewhat brief, as the building itself is likely somewhat younger than its residential neighbors.
However, the lot upon which it sits portrays a part of Charleston’s history that is vital yet often
overlooked: the growth and change of industry. The lot at 12 Anson Streét has been party to much of the
most important economic developments and shifts in Charleston throughout its history. Even now, asa
popular restaurant, it is an indicator of trends greater than itself; trends that will undoubtedly shape
Charleston’s future.

Once a 'marshy stream outside the northern bastion of the Walled City of Charleston, the district
known in the past as Colleton Square and now known as the Market area has showed remarkable tenacity
over the past three and a half centuries. Despite myriad misfortunes, economic collapse, fires,
earthquakes and struggles to keep up with the times, the area, along with 12 Anson Street, remains a vital
artery of Charleston’s business.

The following narrative is the result of research on the history of this property in light of one of
the city’s great disasters, the Fire of 1861. Completed for the research class of Clemson
University/College of Charleston’s Graduate Program in Historic Preservation, instructed by Katherine
Saunders of the Historic Charleston Foundation, this history will narrate the story of 12 Anson Street
from its beginning as part of Lot 80 in the Grand Modell of Charleston to its present day as the home of
Anson Restaurant. At given times in its history the property was a home for a prominent planting and
banking family, a work space for renowned stone artisans, an industrial outbuilding for an iil-fated
brewery, an ice house and, finally, the restaurant that sits on the corner today. It has seen great changes in
Charleston’s history and the history of South Carolina as a whole, a modest witness to sweeping strokes

of history’s brush. This work is an invitation to hear its story.
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The Building

Something about commercial buildings: when the use changes, the building changes drastically.
- Kristopher King, Consultant, King Preservation Management, LLC

The two-story frame building with brick veneer that currently sits at 12 Anson Street was
extensively renovated in the 1990s. (Figures 2 and 3) Much of its historic fabric is concealed by wall
coverings on the interior and decorative ivy and stucco on the exterior, The horizontal dimension and
construction material of the building, though, is the same as it appears in documentation from the 1880s,
when the building was a one-story ice manufacturing plant. Dating the building as it currently stands is
problematic due to extensive renovation campaigns and repeated adaptive use throughout the past
century. This description will attempt to make the case that this building is, indeed, a former ice
manufacturing plant with a construction date possibly as early 1384.

A rectangular building with its primary fagade facing west on Anson Street, 12 Anson’s current
dimensions are 68° long by 417 wide.! The west (primary) fagade is covered in decorative stucco that is
currently painted pink.” The ground floor of this facade is comprised of four sets of French doors set with
decorative glasswork, part of the renovation work completed in the 1990s by the Anson Restaurant.
Another goal of this renovation was to transform the six windows set in the second floor of the primary
fagade into French doors and construct the
balcony that currently is part of the '
building. (Figure 1) The north fagade of
the building is comprised of exposed brick
veneer, as are the other facades of 12
Anson. The north fagade is punctuated by
four 6 over 6 windows on the ground floor
and five 6 over 6 windows on the second
floor. The south fagade has no
fenestration, and the rear {east fagade) of ;

the building has one 6 over 6 window at

the second floor level as well as two : Ji
utility doors, one on each floor. A large Figure {. Construction of new doorways and balcony in 1990.
metal outdoor staircase connects the upper

utility door with the ground. (Figures 4 and 5)

! Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Charleston, SC, Deed Bock K89, Page 182. With
corresponding plat.

% As of November 7, 2011, an application is on file with the Charleston Board of Architectural Review (BAR) requesting
permission to paint this fagade an earthen-gray hue, and to repaint the green French doors a burgundy color.
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Recognition of these exterior changes is significant, as it indicates more than one stage of alteration to the

building’s fabric. Some conflicts that exist in documentary evidence of the building over time are

reconciled by this physical evidence.

The earliest non-Sanborn image of the two story brick building can be found on the receipt

headers of the Germania Brewing Company in 1915. The image, a depiction of the brew works located

across Anson Street and bounded on the north by Hayne Street, shows the building at Anson and

Guignard as it likely was before these changes took place. (Figure 7) Records on file with the Charleston

Please veturn all Kegs, Urates and Bottles promptly,
freight prepaid.

Figure 7. Depiction of the
Germania Brewing
Company’s properties on
Hayne, Anson and Guignard,
1915, 12 Anson is the Ice
Factory in the bottom left of
the image. 1t is likely that this
building, possibly built in
1884, is the same building
that exists today with changes

_made to the north fagade and

roof structure as portrayed
here. The lot upon which the
brew house and office was
located is presently a parking
lot, the length of Hayne
between Anson and Church
Streets has been closed and
removed.

Board of Architectural Review indicate that permits were filed to change the slope of the roof to

accommodate the addition that currently sits atop the building, which suggests that the current flat roof

could possibly have once been the gabled roof depicted in the Germania Brewery image. The installation

of windows on the ground floor of the building is also documented, as shown in a photograph of the north

fagade pre-1990s renovation. (Figure 8) Sanborn maps from 1884 describe a one story wood frame

building with brick veneer.® This representation remains the same in Sanborn maps for the years 1888,

* sanborn Fire Company, Maps depicting Anson/Guignard/Hayne Streets, May 1884 and June 1888, University

Libraries Digltal Collection. http://digital.tcl.ec.edu [Accessed September 6, 2011).
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Colleton Square: The Marsh North of the Little Creek

By virtue of a warrant under the hands of the Honorbl. Collon N Joseph Wr. fsic] Governor and
Landgrave and the Lords proprietors Deputies Some directed bearing date the third day of March Anno
Dom 1680. That Act measure and laid out unto Peter Colleton Barr, Thomas Colleton Esq. and James
Colleton Esq and Landgrave. one towne lot in the new Charles Towne which said lott is distinctly known
by ye Letter A with all ye Marsh thereonto belonging: as in the record & Moddell of this said Towne
appears and Butting to the northward upon a lott known by No J and to the Southward upon a little
Creeke that runneth out of Cooper river: westerly and northerly and bounding to the Eastward upon
Cooper river and to the westward upon another part of the Said Creeke: The forme and shape of which
Said Lot is [sic] in the Grand Moddell of the said towne and now remaining in the Surveyor Genl office
performed by this ... day of March Anno Domni 1680 and Certified by me

Surveyr Genll

- Grant awarded to Peter Colleton and his two brothers on Lot 80, Charles
Town. Figore 12. °

In 1680, afier moving from a previous settlement on the Ashley River, English settlers established
the city of Charles Town in the colony of Carolina. Because it was a proprietary colony, the goals of the
settlement were primarily financial. Shipping and agriculture seemed a natural fit to the fertile peninsula
with two serviceable waterways — the Ashley and Cooper Rivers — on each side. According to the Grand
Modell, a survey of the city and its surroundings, lots were planned in mostly uniform dimensions which
established the pattern for characteristically long lots with their short ends addressing the street. These
lots were numbered and granted to early settlers and the Lords Proprietors, investors who resided in
England. Originally, the city was protected by a wall and bastions on all four sides, one of which ran
along the shores of the Cooper River to the east. (Figure 13) This fortification was eventually
deconstructed by 1740.7

Lot 80 of the Grand Modell was in many ways uncharacteristic of the colonial Charles Town lots.
It was large — described as “9 acres, 2 roods & 2 perches.” It was outside the fortifications constructed in
the early settlement period of the colony, and thus not part of the walled city of Charleston. It was
marshy and wet. Maps depicting the early city nestled inside the wall show two bodies of water, one on
cach outer side of the fortifications. The northern creek, known as Daniel’s Creek in some plats, was the

southern boundary of Peter Colleton and his brothers’ land. In many of these same maps, it is

® Bates, Susan Baldwin and Harriot Chaves Leland, Proprietary Records of South Carolina, Volume Il (Charleston,
SC: The History Press, 2007), 100.

! Poston, Jonathan H, The Buildings of Charleston: A Guide to the City’s Architecture, (Columbia, SC: University of
South Carolina Press, 1997), 47-49,

Fraser, Walter }, Charleston! Charleston! The History of a Southern City, (Columbia, SC; University of South
Carolina Press, 1989), 1-13.

8 Smith, Alice R. Huger and DE Huger, The Dwelling Houses of Chorleston, South Carolina, (New York: Diadem
Books, 1917), 269-270.
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Figure {2. Grant to Sir Peter Colleton, one of the Lords Proprletors, and his two brothers James and Thomas dated

March 1680.
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Figure /3. Henry A. M. Smith, “A Platt of Charles Town,” Copy, 1908. Colleton’s Square is marked

in the lower right.




Figure 14, “Map of Charles Town from a Survey by Edward Crisp, 1704.” Map depicting the walled city of
Charleston and Colleton Square. Daniel’s Creek, depicted to the right (north) of the fortification, bounds Colleton
Square to the south and west by its small branch. This creek would eventually become Market Street. The
fortification marked “B” on this map is Craven’s Bastion, located where East Bay Street would eventually lie.

clear that the condition of the property was heavily dependent on the tides and the fickle shoreline of this
creek. Some southern parcels of the land that would eventually be known as Colleton Square would be
entirely submerged at high water. Almost all documentation of this property in the 17" Century describes
the property as a marsh. In their description of Lot 80, Bates and Leland include correspondence written
to Sir Peter Colleton from Maurice Mathews in 1680, describing how Mathews had organized acquisition
of the land to maximize Colleton’s “front; I meane of dry lande, for ye front is now; large enough with
marsh & all.” Mathews goes on to describe the property: “I believe there is not a more convenient and
pleasant place in the towne, because from hence is ye Longest prospect to sea it is a front Lott upon
Cooper river... ye neighboring hood is not bad, and the Creeke that now runs into ye Marsh may easily be
made.” (Figures 14 and 15)

Sir Peter Colleton and his family were the first to own the property that included what would
become 12 Anson Street. His father, Sir John Colleton, was a Lord Proprietor who moved from England
to Barbados sometime before 1659.'® In addition to Lot 80, Sir Peter Colleton also owned a span of

12,000 acres near the headwaters of the Cooper River known as Fair-Lawn Barony, and a plantation of

® Bates and Leland, Proprietary Records of South Carolina, Volume Iil, 140.
0 Salley, AS., Jr,, editor. “The Colleton Family in South Carolina.” The South Carolina Genealogical Mogazine
Volumes 1 ond 2 {1900}): 325.
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about 4000 acres near Fair-Lawn known as Mulberry. In 1714, after Peter Colleton had sold the property,
the famous Mulberry Plantation house would be built on this land in present-day Monck’s Corner, South
Carolina, !!

Sir John Colleton, like most of the other Lords Proprietors, did not reside in the city of Charles
Town. The same is true of his son Peter Colleton, who also lived in Barbados. As the Bishop Roberts
and W.H. Toms map of Charles Town in 1739 in Figure 14 portrays, no building is known to have been
constructed on this lot while it was under the ownership of Sir Peter Colleton.

Peter Colleton died in 1694, and the lot transferred in turn to his son, the Honorable John
Colleton. The new owner of the property did, in fact, reside in South Carolina for an extended period of
time."> However, it is probable that he stayed primarily on his land in Fair-Lawn and not within the
bounds of Lot 80.

In this initial period of the land’s development, the foundation was laid for Lot 80°s industrial
future. Sometime before 1739, streets had been established connecting the area to the rest of the city as
the fortifications were perforated and eventually dismantled. These streets were Bay Street (later called

East Bay), Eilery Street, Charles Street (later called Anson), Church Street, Pinckney Street and Guignard

Figure 15. Bishop Roberts and W.H. Toms, “The Ichnography of Charles-Town at High Water.” London,
1739. The bridge across Daniel’s Creek is circled in red. Market street is the dim outline at the center of the
creek. The corner of Charles and Guignard Streets is circled in blue.

" |bid, pages 325-336.
2 Ibid, page 334.
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Street. The street that would become Market Street was, at this time, Daniel’s Creek itself. A canal was
established stretching from the creek’s outlet at the Cooper River to Church Street by 1742. A bridge had
also been built over the little creck, extending Bay Street northward. The canal and bridge allowed for
maritime and commercial ventures to extend from the wharfs on the Cooper River inland. This area,
while in the early to mid-17" Century would still have been a mostly undeveloped, was growing rapidly
and awaiting enterprise.”

The first phase of Lot 80’s life as a commercial property began in 1736, when the Honorable John
Colleton sold most of the land to investors George Hunter, Charles Pinckney and Thomas Ellery for
£5000." To them, Lot 80 was a real estate venture: to develop Lot 80, likely to take advantage of
buildable land and develop commercial ventures on the canal at Daniel’s Creek. Financed by Charles
Pinckney, the bridge extending Bay Street over the mouth of Daniel’s Creek was rebuilt to accommodate
heavier and more frequent traffic. Around 1747, the bridge had been built and Charles Pinckney had built
an impressive Georgian mansion with imposing pilasters on Colleton Square near Guignard and East Bay
Streets. In the 1750s, the Pinckneys traveled to England. During this period of time, their grand home in
Colleton Square was the residence of colonial governor James Glen, among others. The house remained
the residence of Carolina colonial governors until the 1770s. Consequently, the Charles Pinckney
mansion was known as the “Governor’s Mansion” and the bridge nearby “Governor’s Bridge.” °

The pleasant lot of land beside the stream was gaining in significance, stature, and economic
weight. Funded by Thomas Ellery and others, the canal at Daniel’s Creek continued to improve and the
marsh filled in, allowing a fish market and the docking of fish and oyster boats.'® Described by Charles

Fraser:

We will now speak of another feature in the localities of Charleston — the creeks and
marshes that penetrated it. T remember the Governor’s bridge, a wide brick arch thrown
across a creek, into which the tide flowed, from where the fish market now stands nearly
up to Meeting Street, and covering almost the whole extent of our present market. (This
creek was, according to plans and maps of Charleston now exhibited to you, the northern
boundary of the town as late as 1711.) When the tide was up, communication was cut off
in Church-street to the opposite side... A merchant of that day informed me afterwards,
that he had once received a raft of timber in Church-street, which had been floated
through the arch of the Governor’s bridge.!’

3 Burton, Milby, “Ellery Street,” Chorleston Streets, (Charleston, SC: Charleston Museum, 19%X}.

" Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Charleston, SC, Deed Book MM, page
253,

Holcomb, Brent, “Deed Book K4, pages 57-63," South Corolina Deed Abstracts 1773-1778, (Columbia, SC: SCMAR,
1993), 60.

' Preservation Society of Charleston, “Governor’s Bridge,”
http://www.halseymap.com/Flash/window.asp?HMID=59. [Accessed November 10, 2011]

Smith and Huger, The Dwelling Houses of Charleston, South Carolfina, 269-270.

' Burton, “Ellery Street.”

' Fraser, Charles, Reminiscences of Charleston, {Charleston, 1854], 28-29,
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Like many commercially motivated land acquisitions, the property
composing Lot 80 was divided and sold. George Hunter sold his remaining
portion of the property in 1742 to Charles Pinckney for £5, possibly as a
means of transferring title and not necessarily ownership, as George Hunter
was the principal financier of the original deed." In the same deed, it is
mentioned that Thomas Ellery has died in the time since the first purchase of

the property. Later evidence suggests his widow, Anne Ellery, continued to

manage the Ellery property on Colleton Square."”
Figure 16. Gabriel Over the course of the last half of the 18" Century, up to and
Guignard (1708-1758). including the Revolutionary War and birth of the United States, various
sections and parcels were bought, sold, and altered on
Colleton Square. Ann Ellery, Charles Pinckney and
George Hunter divided and sold numerous properties.”® In 1744, Pinckney sold a
number of lots to Gabriel Guignard, a French Huguenot, for whom Guignard Street is
named.”! (Figure 16) The deed conveys lots “known in the plat as LMM.” Sadly, no
corresponding plat for this conveyance survives. However, it is not unreasonable to
assume that this land was near or abutting to the street that is named after him.
After Gabriel Guignard’s death in 1758, ownership of his property on

Colleton Square transferred to his three daughters: Margaret, Frances and Ann

Guignard. It appears that the property was subdivided among the three daughters.

Ann Guignard married William Richardson, a merchant and mariner later known forhis  pigue 17, William
service in the American Revolution.” (Figure 17) Tn a renunciation of dower dated Richardson

{773, Ann Guignard Richardson relinquished her right to the property on Charles and (1743-1786)
Guignard Streets and, within the same year, the land was once again subdivided and

sold in pieces. In April of 1777, Thomas Jones purchased part of Ann Richardson’s inherited land.!

' Yolcomb, South Carolina Deed Abstracts 1773-1 778, 60.
1 tangley, Clara A, “Deed Book MM Page 253" and “Deed Book DD, Page 99,” South Carolina Deed Abstracts:
1719-1772, (Greenville, 5C: Southern Historical Press, 1983), 156 and 285.
*{angley, “Deed Book MM, Page 253,” South Carolina Deed Abstracts 1773-1778, 156.
! {angley, “Deed Book Z, Page 531,” 88.
* Huguenot Society of South Carolina, “Another letter from M.E. Guignard, of fa Rochelle, accompanied by a
genealogical chart showing the different generations of his family in France from 1660 to the Present,”
Transactrons of the Huguenot Society of South Carofina, Number 4 (1897). 44-45.

* Brown, John Howard, editor, Lambs Biographical Dictionory of the United States, Volume Vi, (Boston Federal
Book Company of Boston, 1903), 473.
* Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Deed Book C5, Pages 496-503 and Deed
Book Z4, Pages 472-476.
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Figure 18. Copy of a plan of Colleton Square dated 22 March 1742 associated with Charleston RMC
Deed Book K4, Page 58. Copied July 1882. Also known as Plat 619 in the McCrady Plats.

The eventually known as 12 Anson Street is marked as lot “N” on the corner of Charles Street and
Guignard. The street between the Canal and Guignard is Ellery. The streets east of Charles are first
Raper’s (Rafer’) Alley, and East Bay. The triangular structure in the southeast corner of the plat is
what remains of Craven’s Bastion, part of the original walled city.
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Prominent Families: The Joneses and Legares

1 give devise and bequeath unto Dr. Daniel Legare, husband of my late deceased Daughter Elizabeth
Martha Legare at my decease the use and benefit during his natural life, of my House & Lot situated at
the Corner of Anson and Guignard streets in the city of Charleston which I now occupy and also one
moiety of the lot now used by me as a garden and horse yard adjacent to the said premises ...

- Thomas Jones, in his Will, 1826 *®

Economically, Charleston and the Market area surged forward during and after the Revolution.
Speculation certainly was already present in Colleton Square, as the many land transactions between
Charles Pinckney, George Hunter, Thomas and Anne Ellery and Gabriel Guignard indicate. Thomas
Jones was yet one more player in this period of growth. A merchant and a planter, Thomas Jones was
also involved in many financial services for the county and private charity organizations, He was a tax
inquirer, a commissioner for various organizations, and a treasurer for the Society for the Benefit of
Elderly and Disabled Ministers and of Widows and Orphans of Clergy of the Independent or
Congregational Church. During the Revolutionary War, Jones was a representative for St. Philip and St.
Michael’s Parishes, where he voted to ratify the Federal Constitution.”

After purchasing the land from William and Ann Richardson in 1777, Thomas Jones took
residence at the corner of Charles and Guignard Streets. Sometime between this year and 1804, Charles
Street was renamed Anson. By the 1788, the development of a Market around the canal that once was
Daniel’s Creek began in earnest. The canal, which had once reached Meeting Street, had been filled in
towards the Cooper River as far as French Alley, now known as Church Street.”® Streets had been
developed on either side of the canal, and other vendor operations had joined the fish market and the
oyster boats in the area. Around this time, an act of City Council established the goal of developing a
formal market for the sale of fish, poultry, meat, vegetables and supplies.” In the same year, City
Council purchased land from surrounding owners in order to establish the formal market and also to close
Ellery Street, as it was no longer a necessary throughway; North and South Market Streets would
essentially render Ellery obsolete. Recorded in Deed Book A6, Page 232 at the Charleston County
Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Charles Cotesworth Pinckney, Revolutionary War veteran,

statesman and son of Charles Pinckney, along with property owners by the names of Sims White, John

% mwill of Thomas Jones,” Wills of Charleston County, 1671-1868, Volume 37, Page 129, {microfilm}, South
Carolina Room, Charleston County Public Likrary.

#7 Bailey, Louise, and Elizabeth Ivey Cooper, editors, Biographical Directory of the South Carolina House of
Representatives, Volume i, (Columbia, SC: USC Press, 1981), 387.

% Burton, “French Alley.”

% gckhard, George B, compiler, A Digest of the Ordnances of the City Council of Charleston from the year 1783 to
Oct 1844 to which are annexed the acts of the Legisiature which relate exclusively to the City of Charleston,
(Charleston, SC: Walker & Burke, 1844).
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Elm Grove.” It is interesting to note that the
plantation at Elm Grove survived into the 20"
Century, although it no longer stands today.
(Figures 23 and 24)

Thomas Jones, while evidently successful

with his plantations and financial career, suffered

the loss of both his son Samuel and his daughter

Elizabeth Martha in his lifetime. Elizabeth Martha
died in 1824 of dropsy, and Samuel died eight

Figure 23. Elm Grove Plantation, 1928,

- years before his sister.”” Tt appears that Doctor Daniel Legare,
after this incident, moved into the same house at 4 Guignard
Street that his father-in-law Thomas Jones resided at. It is
possible that Doctor Daniel changed his residence in order to
care for Thomas Jones in his old age. One thing is sure,
Doctor Daniel did not marry again. Furthermore, Samuel
Jones’ widow, Mary, and her children moved into the house
next door by 1816.*® Mary Jones’ house, sometimes listed as

1 Guignard or, more simply, the corner of Guignard and
Raper’s Alley, was situated on the Eastern half of Thomas
Jones’ property. Evidence shows that Mary’s daughters Sarah,
Susan and Elizabeth Jones, lived in this house until the 1860s

or later. No description is available for either of these houses

Figure 24. Elm Grove Plantation, 1928, during this time period.
Thomas Jones died in 1826, very likely surrounded by

his grandchildren who lived in his house and in the house next
door. In his will, he divided his property which, after the Market was established around 1800, bounded
on the west by Anson, on the north by Guignard, on the south by the former Ellery street (which had been
closed), and on the east by Reaper’s Alley (known now as “Rafer’s Alley”). The children of his

% Smith, Gare Legare, 53.

¥ Ibid. SS.

Will of Thomas Jones, 1-2.

*® Hagy, Directories, 1816, 1818, 1822, 1825, and 1829, 85-87.

Hagy, James W, Directories for the City of Charleston, South Carolina for the Years 1830-31, 1835-36, 1836, 1837-
38 and 1840-41. (Baltimore, MD: Genealogical Publishing Company, 1997}, 114.
















value of the property at a value of $5600 in 1852 and 1853,
yet the property value increases to $8000 in 1854 and
remains at this value in 1856 and 1857, This documentary
evidence indicates that the Walkers could have built new
structures on the property or modified those that were there
when they purchased the land.”

The Market area and Ansonborough neighborhood
were changing, along with Charleston altogether, in the
middle of the 19" Century. While the wealthy planter class
still existed, it now had to coexist with industrious
merchants. The railroad, which had been established in the
area in 1833, was extended into the city itself in the 1850s.
Millions were spent on improvements of public wharves on
East Bay Street and elsewhere. One of the most emblematic

buildings of this period is

Figure 32, Headstone in
Circular Congregational
Churchyard bearing the stamp
of David A Walker.

No'nw.-n he Fiew ol THOMAS WALKER.
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and depot, and numerous sawmills,

Figure 31. Advertlsement in the Charleston
Courier dated January 1, 1837.

the Custom House on Market and East Bay Streets, construction of which
began in 1849, although it was not completed until after the Civil War.*
The Custom House was located only two blocks from the Governor’s
Mansion built by Pinckney; with all the commercial activity in this area
at this time, amid monumental buildings like these, the Market area must
have been an invigorating place. Manufacturing and export had a short
boom in this period, with Charleston churning out products from
“fourteen grist mills, six rice mills, six iron foundries (including the
Phoenix Iron Works whose annual productivity was surpassed only by
foundries located in New Orleans, Louisiana; Richmond, Virginia; and

Nashville, Tennessee), six turpentine distilleries, a railroad machine shop

233

Clty of Charleston, City Tax Assessment Ward Books, Charleston, SC, Ward 3, 1851-1856, 1.

** Poston, Buildings of Charleston, 348-349,
Charles Fraser, Reminiscences of Charleston, 114.
Walter Fraser, Charleston! Charleston!, 233-235.
> Walter Fraser, Charleston! Charleston!, 232.
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Little additional evidence exists regarding William and David Walker Personally. While many of
the former owners of 12 Anson Street left a trail of documents — wills, plantation inventories, bankruptcy
records, penned legislation and personal letters — the Walkers left their legacy in monuments to others.
Their stonecuttet’s signatures are to be found on cemetery gravestones across Charleston, particularly in
Circular Churchyard and Magnolia Cemetery, but also in resting places of many other faiths. (Figures 29,
30 and 32) As previously mentioned, markers signed by the Walkers and Whites can be found even in the

western edges of South Carolina. Yet it is difficult to
determine much else regarding their lives than that which WHITE’S

i e YRR & STONE YARD,

{OLD ESTABLISHMENT,)

family stone yard, that of Robert D White, depicts a 128 Mesosting Street,
AEIY MORTH OF CRARLLSTON THETAL

directories.™ One undated advertisement for another

marble yard on Meeting Street. A descendant of Thomas
Walker’s son-in-law John White and thus a relative of
David and William Walker, Robert D White operated at
128 Meeting Street in the 1860s and 1870s; the portrayal
of his marble yard gives some indication of what the
Walker brothers’ may have looked like.” (Figure 33)
David and William Walker, whose greatest

legacies are silent stones, owned the property and Anson

and Guignard Streets during the most tumultuous years Am""‘m ana !'Ol‘els'n

Charleston had known up to that time. They would m A’ R B L E m A- N T L E S

o SEPULCHRAL MONUMENTS, MORAL TABLETS,
doubtlessly have carved headstones for Civil War dead, CABINET SLABS; ITALIAN TILE,

Marble Steps, Sllls and Fronts,
BRAOWN STONE DCOR AND WIHIIIIW SILLS, STEPS, ASMLER

and they would have watched the process of

Reconstruction play out from their house in FRONTS, BUOGES, &,
o ] Bluo Flagg and twrh Stones.  Plans Drawa ie Oriér.
Ansonborough. Although he would maintain ownership ROBERT D, WHITR
of the property and subsequently sell it with his brother in Figure 33. Anundated advertisement for
1876, William S Walker ceased to be listed as a stone cutter g;be? D. White’s marble yard on Meeting
eet.

by 1855.”® Continually active until the 1880s, David Walker
opened a stone yard on 152 Meeting Street after selling the

Anson property, and went into business with his son, David Walker, Jr.”*

5 Trinkley, An Archaeological Reconnaissance of Hobcaw Plontation, 37.

5 Lavelle, Brittany, “Marble Yards and Stone Cutters: 1850-1900,” 2011, 4.
%8 Trinkley, An Archaeological Reconnaissance of Hobcow Plontation, 37.

* Lavelle, “Marble Yards and Stone Cutters,” 3.
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Conflagrations and Confederacy: The Great Fire of 1861 and the Civil War

Al five [A.M ], the city was wrapped in a living wall of fire from the Cooper to the Ashley without a single
gap to break its dread uniformity.
- Emma E, Holmes, in her Diary®

In 1860, secessionist tensions felt by South Carolinians finally culminated in Civil War.
Economic concerns were at issue with social ones: Charleston’s “iron age” of the 1850s had been
staggered and fought against as much as it had been welcomed. The failure of the South to fully
industrialize has often been cited as a cause of the Civil War.*' With the signing of the Ordinance of
Secession in December 1860 and the hostilities at Fort Sumter in April 1861, Charleston was fully
involved in the Confederate cause.

It is unclear how much of a role the Walker
brothers played in Charleston’s Civil War history.
South Carolina Confederate rosters do not list any
person by the name of David A or William S
Walker from South Carolina, but these searchable
databases are incomplete.® Both Walker brothers

remained at the same address throughout the Civil E

War years, although it is unclear whether they " B lietn? i ey u.m:., c
remained in business during this time, as directory ‘_”c"'o' De ' Mrs Ontharing Brady
o . X , O\ H Whilam Savee {
information is intermittant. Thus, while some with "  morea's LAJR—-WIT SIDE—WARD ’o. &
. . 1;Johu MeGeé ' |Jeaeph MoGiNyTayyfp ¢

blacker humor would suggest that if any business 3'Betate H B Wikiame l::: )

5|¥Wnm P
was to survive the economic depression of the war, T!mw =saT .;;_" Bridget Tyghe

' & jkaves

it would be that of the Walkers, it is not certain that ‘;ﬂm: :.m:.:omn' MDB—WARD NO, U

1i8arah and Sasan Jenes  |Sarsh and Seean Joses

this is the case.
Figure 34. Section of the Charleston Mercury’s list

of buildings destroyed in the fire, published
Guignard Street in terms of effect and proximity was ~ December 20, 1861. The property owned by the
Walkers is not listed. The house of Sarah and Susan
Jones is listed at the bottom of the section,

Much cleser to the corner of Anson and

the great fire that occurred in December of 1861,

* John F. Marszalex, Jr, editor, “The Charleston Fire of 1861 as Described in the Emma E Holmes Diary,” The South
Carolina Historical Magazine, Volume 76, Number 2, (1975): 62.

®1 Coclanis, Peter A, Shadow of a Dream: Economic Life and Death in the South Carolina Low Country, {New York:
Oxford University Press, 1989}, 131-135, 295,

®2 National Park Service Civil War Soldiers and Sailors System, http://www.itd.nps.gov/cwss/. [Accessed November
2, 2011}

Records available at the South Carolina State Archives also prove inconclusive regarding David or William Walker's
service,
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and numerous slaves. Yet he was primarily the owner of the largest bakery in South Carolina, located on
Market and Guignard streets,”” He also owned property on Guignard and East Bay Streets. While he
would not again own the Brewery, Claussen continued to operate his bakery into the 20™ Century. As for
Emst Waltjen, he had owned a shipping company located on East Bay Street as early as 1882. It
appears he returned to this business and did not venture into brewing again.

The 1884 Sanborn Map of the Anson, Market, and Hayne Street area depicts for the first time the
building that could be the structure that still stands today at Anson and Guignard Streets. (Figure 10) A
frame building with a brick veneer on its north and east facades, it is one story and, like many of its sister
buildings across the street, has industrial pumping equipment inside. At this time, the building was used
as a bottling plant for the brewery’s activities. Across Anson, the Palmetto/Claussen Brewery has a one
story frame engine house, a two-story saloon, one two story ice house, and a four-story ice
house/fermentation building, all constructed of brick with numerous pumps and machinery.” Much of
this complex across the street was likely constructed in the early 1880s; as indicated in city tax assessor’s
ward books, the value of the property almost doubles between 1879 and 1880, from $6,500 to $13,500.
In this same ward book notation, the word “Brewery” is written beside the value of the property. (Figure
39) In 1880, the value of the property at 10 Anson Street increased in value from $1,000 to $1,500, and

the word “improved” is written lightly beside the assessment figure.”

NAME GF nwNgy Fraresio ""‘"'l‘_"u"‘_'-‘-"" VALIE  vang & prn \I.l'h‘
A - ‘A1,

. . .. . n_‘ ¥ J.U.&FT'.‘;.,.“" LAXD  Heep “"._f 1o —;f" F lﬂ
ﬂ %ﬁ %«%//M Z e g2 2. I "7 aod

L it g
f :i 'é‘ @;3_%,;? ok £ s I

’_,.‘ 4 5o trn WFM ééw £ G dm/‘gm

Figure 39. City Tax Assessor’s Ward Book for the years 1876-1880. The former owner of the lot on
which the brewery was built is crossed out and “JCH Claussen” written in lightly below.

" Mehrlunder, Andrea, Germans of Charleston, Richmond and New Orleans During the Civil War Period (1850-
1870), {New York: Walter de Gruyter & Co., 2011), 172-173.

"® AE Sholes & EF Wetherbre, Sholes' Directory of the City of Charfeston, Volume 5, (Atlanta: Sholes and Company
Publishers, 1882}, 88.

" Sanborn Fire Company, Maps depicting Anson/Guignard/Hayne Streets, May 1884,

7 City Ward Books, Ward 3, 1876-1880, 3.
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Taylor, published in 1896. (Figure 43) They operated by using ammonia gas cooling lines that could be
adjusted to meet any temperature. The installation of the 35-ton De La Vergne machines was published

in trade magazines.” Their production potential marveled one travel magazine of the day:

Two ice factories supply the city’s demand in this direction, although the main one,
having a capacity of seventy-five tons a day, is operated by the Charleston Ice Company,
is the only one that produces for that purpose only. The other is the ice plant of the
Palmetto Brewery, which has a daily capacity of thirty tons, and disposes outside of all
the ice not required by the brewery, the price of which averages three dollars and fifty
cents a ton.*

John H Doscher, listed as president of

DE LA VERGNE
PATENT
REFRIGERATING

the Palmetto Brewing Company,
signed this contract with the De La
Vergne Company, agreeing to
installment payments amounting to AND
$8,000.

It is likely that the purchase of IBE-“AKIHG SYSTml

these mach-ines led to the conversion The Most EFHGIENT, HELIABLE, & EGONOMIGAL
of the bottling plant on the southeast SYSTEM in the M ARKET.

corner of Anson and Guignard, which

had also been used as cooper and ‘SOIO TAcensees for Great Britain, the Colonies
and British Possessions,

storage facility, to the brewery’s

primary ice house. Pettigrew notes Figure 43. Advertisement for De La Vergne’s ice making

that the location of the original machinery. Note the size of the machine in relation to the man
bottling plant across the street from standing beside it
the brewery’s main operation was
tax-motivated: at this time taxation of beer was measured in casks or kegs, which legally were required to
be transported off the brewery premises before being bottled. After 1890, this law had been amended
somewhat, and it was possible for Palmetto to house their bottling plant on the same block as the brewery,
although in separate buildings, possibly connected by pipe transference systems.” This development

allowed the re-situation and improvement of Palmetto’s ice and refrigeration branch.

" lce and Refrigeration lilustrated, Volume 3, Numbers 1-6 (1892): 36. “Charleston — the new Palmetto Brewery
has just set up a 35-ton De La Vergne machine for cooling that plant.”

8 Allan, George Marshall, “Charleston: A Typical City of the South,” The Mogazine of Trovel, Volume 1, Number 2,
{1895): 100.

i Pettigrew, Chorleston Beer, 29-30,
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brewery on Anson Street. The next twenty years would not bode well for both the property itself and for

John Doscher cither.
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Figure 45. 1888 Sanborn Map depicting the Palmetto Brewery and surrounding area,
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Any piscatorial pleasure seeker who pulls a fish out of the water in the harbor to-day
needn’t be surprised if the finny fellow executes a livelier series of flops than might be
expected even of a fish out of water, for there will be enough “booze” mixing with the
water by daylight this morning to make anything flop. This cocktail condition of the
water will be due to the police having poured about one hundred gallons of confiscated
liquor in the sewer at the station yesterday afternoon, causing the vicinity to emanate an
odor suggestive of an exploded distillery.”

Clearly, attempts to evade the dispensary laws were rampant. Yet their ongoing
enforcement easily caused great restriction on Germania’s capability draw profit. This may have
been one reason that, despite John Doscher’s previous missteps in the realm of ice making for
profit, Germania once again sought to upgrade its ice house venture, this time purchasing new
equipment from York Manufacturing Company. In a proposal dated February 12, 1915, John
Doscher approved the purchase and installation of one York ice making machine, including all
the ammonia gauges, thermometers, foundation template and accoutrements necessary for the
machine’s operation. In this quote, the York Manufacturing representative stated that the new
machine would have the capacity to produce 60 tons of ice in a twenty-four hour period, nearly
doubling the output of the previous machines.”” Yet the profits reaped from the sale of ice and

P refrigeration services could

i E .

MONTHLY STATEMENT, Folls..... . not ease the hardShlP placed
G}wrlasto;b, 8 0

o ngo/ ¢ on the brewery by the
M\ZTa o Pz dispensary laws.

T

THE GERMANIA BREWING CO,

= -DR.~2T
Cor. Hayne, Anson, Chureh, Guignard
and Pinckney Streets,
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Figure 47. Germania Brewery receipt header dated 1916.

% ”Booze in the Bay May Shock Fishes,” The Charleston Courier, September 3, 1915,

* York Manufacturing Company, Manufacturers of tce Making and Refrigeration Machinery, “Proposal and
Specification for Germania Brewing Company, Charleston, South Carolina.” Designated as “Exhibit A” in the
records of Mitchell & Smith, defense representation of Germania Brewery in its bankruptcy proceedings.
Mitchell and Smith, Attorneys at Law. Germania Brewery Bankruptcy Records 1915-1918. South Carolina
Historical Society, Charleston, South Carotina.
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BREWERIES MUST
GIVE UP BUSINESS

Attorney General . Rules:
They Can’t Sell After Elec-
' tion Is Declared

Columbla, Sept. 30~-The attorney
reneral’s office today rendered an opin.|
ijon that the brewaries i Charleston
can not mell beer -to the dispensaries
afier the result of th¥ prohlbitlon elec-
tlon han been declared by the Stats
board of canvassers,. phe dpiolon was
written by Fred H. Dominlck. assist-
ant aitorney general upon request of
John Marshall, aecretary of the Char-
leston county dlapensary board. The
opinlén was given with reference tol

_the Germania Brewing Company, .
~ “In reply thareto,” says the opinfon,
- % will pay -that the prohibition aot, in
- mection 4,. thereof,” provides that )’ no
Uquor shall be bought or contracted for
.. or rectlved by any county dispensary
_ board: after the result of said eléction
. 15 declared by the Stute board of can-
- vaniérs.” Under section 359 of. the|'
Criminal Code of 1912, .which section
Fefers to the manufacturs and sale of|’
liquor -bE distilleries and beer hy brew.| "’
provided that such manufas-|:
. turers shall not sell such liquors, and
_: beverages to any person, firm or cor-
', poration within the limits of thia State,
except to county dlspensary boards,
< It will be seen from the provisions
.ot law quoted that the brewery can
only sell to the dounty diapensary
boards., Under thé prohibltich act the
county dlspensary can not buy,
oontraot for - or receive any liquor
which, of courss, will include beer, af-
ter the result of the election is declared
by the State board of canvassers.

“I am of the oplnion that this pro-|,
viston df the prohibition act will ap-|°
pl¥ to a hrewery that has been Heenzed|:
in this State in the same manner ag tol!
any brewery outside of the State, In
other words that after the resilt of the
election has been declared by the State
board ot cunvassers the county dispen-
sary board has no power or authoriiy,
under the law In my aopinion, to buy,
contpract for or recelve any lquor or
beer from any source whatsoever.”

N ]

e b
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Figure 48, Anundated newspaper
article, likely from the year 1916
announcing the closure of
breweries, as statewide prohibition
eliminated business with state
dispensaries. The article mentions
Germania Brewery by name,
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In an attempt to accommodate for widespread
inefficiencies of the statewide Dispensary Law, South
Carolina adopted a plan in which counties were allowed
to decide between outright prohibition and the continued
operation of the dispensary under the jurisdiction of the
county. When this did not ease political, social and
criminal tensions, South Carolina enacted statewide
prohibition in 1916, two years before the Eighteenth
Amendment banned alcohol nationwide.”

While the eventual demise of Germania Brewery
may seem as if it were inevitable due to the approach and
final onset of prohibition legislation, it is clear that these
forces were not the sole felling blow. In a series of
events that appears strangely akin to the debt problems
once experienced by the Palmetto Brewery under John
Doscher’s execution, Germania Brewery amassed an
menagerie of debts that tumbled into default. In the case
of the York Manufacturing Company, to which the
brewery owed roughly $4,000, Doscher complained of
faulty machinery and avoided correspondence with the
company for weeks at a time.” Germania owed debs to
lumber companies, banks, and additional refrigeration
companies. In 1915, Germania Brewing Company
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Yet, even during
the procesé of filing for bankruptcy, John Doscher and
Germania Brewery avoided their creditors, A
correspondence from Y ork Manufacturing Company dated
July 5, 1916 states that the company was “very much
surprised to receive notice, today, of petition in
bankruptcy, covering your Company;... You understand
that we will have to, therefore, proceed under our Bill of

Sale, and Mortgage, and we wish to further advise that we

%2 Christensen, “South Carolina Dispensary Law,” 78, 84-85.

5 Pettigrew, Charleston Beer, 35.
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have turned our account over to Messrs. Smythe & Visanski, of New York City.”*

In the midst of this upheaval, John H. Doscher died suddenly on May 4, 1916. His son,
Gustav Doscher, was left to continue the bankruptcy process along with his mother, Emelia R.
Doscher and various members of the Doscher family, all being stockholders in Germania
Brewery. They designated Lawrence M. Pinckney, a real estate and insurance professional, as
Trustee of the property, and proceeded to sell the property at auction on September 5, 1916. The
inventory list of items to be sold at auction includes positively every item in the possession of
Germania Brewery, including:

- One slot machine

- One electric wall fan

- Three clocks

- Lot of hamesses

- Lot of kegs

- Lot of junk

- 4 horses

- Ten ice wagons

- 2 mules

- One cart

- One buggy”

Sadly, documentation shows that one of the horses died before auction, and only three horses
instead were sold. These items, along with other non-machinery items on the Brewery property,
were sold as one parcel. The Brewery property, including the lots on the southeast corer of
Anson and Guignard, the Brewery complex on Anson, Hayne and Church streets, and a corner of
property on Church and Hayne Streets, was slated to be sold, along with all included machinery,
as one lot.

Much like the previous financial upset undergone by the Palmetto Brewery, the auction
on September 5, 1916 launched a complicated phase of readjustment. Shortly before the auction
was slated to take place, in August 1916, Gustav Doscher entered into an agreement with a group
calling themselves the Union Corporation. In this agreement, Gustav Doscher admitted to being
“desirous™ of purchasing the lot of land and machinery composing Germania Brewery, but also

admits to not having “sufficient funds.” Hence, the Union Corporation agreed to purchase the

** Mitchell and Smith, Germania Brewery Bankruptcy Records 1915-1918,
* “List of Personal Property to be Sold by Trustee at Public Auction in Re The Germania Brewing Company,
Bankrupt,” Germania Brewery Bankruptcy Records 1915-1918,
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Ice, Antiques and Fine Dining: 12 Anson in the 20t Century

Our location is in the absolute heart of historic Charleston just steps from Market Street. The
look of the restaurant is chic and stylish. The feel is relaxed and approachable, And the service is
both fun and polished. Please also note that we are one of the premier venues in the city for
private dining and events.

- The Anson Restaurant, from its website, www.ansonrestaurant.com

From the time it was sold to Carolina Public Service Company into the 1950s, 12 Anson
Street was continually part of various ice company operations. In 1927, Carolina Public Service
company sold the property, along with the rest of the former Germania Brewery property, to
Southern Ice Company, which dealt both in ice and coal.'® Sanborn maps depict the property at
the corner of Anson and Guignard in 1928 as a one-story building paired sharing a wall with
another slightly larger building to the south — which might explain what appears to be the
remnants of a party wall on the south fagade of the building today. The adjoining building was a
general store, also owned by Southern Iee Company.'®

By 1944, 12 Anson, still a part of Southern Ice Company, had become a carpenter shop,
and by 1955 the same building had become offices for the company.'®® Upon its sale in 1967 to
local philanthropist Nathan S Addlestone, it became an antique shop, as it remained until it was
acquired by the current owners of the Anson Restaurant. (Figure 3)

It appears that attempts were made to develop the property as early as 1985, when an
investment firm entitled Ravenel, Eiserhardt and Associates purchased the property.'® In the
1980s, the firm purchased other properties such as the Greyhound Station that at that time was
located at 89 Society Street, and property in West Ashley near St. Andrew’s Boulevard and
Magnolia Avenue.’”” 2 Anson was sold only a year later, in 1986, to Garibaldi’s, Inc.'® The
family of restaurants represented under Garibaldi’s includes restaurants by the same name in

Columbia and Savannah and the Old Pink House Restaurant, also in Savannah.'” These

1% Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Deed Book N34, Page 755.

% sanborn Fire Company, Maps depicting Anson/Guignard/Hayne Streets, 1928, Charleston County Public Library,
South Carolina Room, microfilm.

1% sanborn Fire Company, Maps depicting Anson/Guignard/Hayne Streets, 1951 and 1955, Charleston County
Public Library, South Carolina Room, microfilm,

1% Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Deed Book U150, Page 102.

Merle D. Kellerhals, “Banking Firm Buys Location of Bus Station,” Charleston News and Caurier, October 14,
1987, Page B1.

Kerri Morgan, “Planning Board gives subdivision new life,” Charfeston News and Courier, March 16, 1989, Page B1.
1% Charleston County, Records of the Register Mesne Conveyance (RMC), Deed Book B161, Page 910,

1% Anson Restaurant website, www.ansonrestaurant.com. [Accessed November 12, 2011}
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restaurants are under the same ownership currently, although the title of the company has shifted
to Balish Family, LLC, the current deed holder for the Anson Restaurant.

The Market area today is the center of the tourist experience of Charleston just as much
as the houses on the Battery or the walls of Fort Sumter are. Tourism in the past decades has
been the economic engine of Charleston, and 12 Anson Street remains in its role as part of
Charleston’s economy. When land was Charleston’s wealth, 12 Anson Street was developed.
When industry came to the peninsula, the corner lot became part of the industrial landscape. In
the late 19™ Century, as steam power and electricity led to new innovations in machinery, 12
Anson took on the flywheels and belts and refrigeration machines. And, before the rise of 1950s
prosperity and progress, 12 Anson Street proyided Charleston with its ice. 1t is only natural that
12 Anson continue to be part of the “new what’s next” in the Charleston economy: it’s been

doing so for three centuries.
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Annotated Chain of Title: 12 Anson Street

March 3, 1680

Grantor: Surveyor General

Grantee: Sir Peter Colleton, Thomas Colleton & James Colleton
Lot: Lot Number 80 of the Grand Modell

“By virtue of a warrant under the hands of the Honorbl. Collon N Joseph Wr. [sic] Governor and
Landgrave and the Lords proprietors Deputies Some directed bearing date the third day of March Anno
Dom 1680. That Act measure and laid out unto Peter Colleton Barr, Thomas Colleton Esq. and James
Colleton Esq and Landgrave: one towne lot in the new Charles Towne which said lott is distinctly known
by ye Letter A with all ye Marsh thereonto belonging: as in the record & Moddell of this said Towne
appears and Butting to the northward upon a lott known by No J and to the Southward upon a liitle
Creeke that runneth out of Cooper river: westerly and northerly and bounding to the Eastward upon
Cooper river and to the westward upon another part of the Said Creeke: The forme and shape of which
Said Lott is [sic] in the Grand Moddell of the said towne and now remaining in the Surveyor Genl office
performed by this ... day of March Anno Domni 1680 and Certified by me

Surveyr Genll”

February 10, 1746

Grantor: George Hunter, gentleman, of Charlestown

Grantee: Anne Ellery of Berkely County, widow and executrix of Thomas Ellery
Book & Page: Book MM, Page 253

Type: Conveyance

This conveyance is cited as the transaction through which the property at Lot 80 of the Grand Modell was
conveyed from the Honorable John Colleton to George Hunter, Thomas Ellery and Charles Pinckney, as
the final narrative of the document reads:

“Whereas lot #80 by various mesne conveyances became vested in John Colleton, Esq., of Fairlawn
Barony, & St. James Parish, Berkeley Co., & whereas John Colleton & Susannah his wife, by L & R
dated 13 & 14 July 1736, for £5000 currency, sold the lot & premises to George Hunter: & whereas the
title was made out to George Hunter alone, but the purchase money was paid by George Hunter, Charles
Pinckney, & Thomas Ellery, jointly; & whereas Thomas Ellery by will dated 2 October 1738 bequeathed
the premises to Ann Ellery, party hereto; & whereas by agreement between George Hunter, Charlest
Pinckney, & Ann Ellery (widow of Thomas Ellery) the land has been laid out in small lots, with streets &
lanes...”
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August 30 & 31, 1744

Grantor: Charles Pinckney, Esq.

Grantee: Gabriel Guignard

Book & Page: Book Z, Page 531

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 3 divisions of Lot 80 in Charles Town
£1450

“Whereas the Lords Proprs. On 5 Mar. 1680 granted Sir Peter Colleton a lot in Charleston containing 9a.,
2 roods, 21 perches, English measure of dry land & marsh land which lot is as #80;...”

“an agreement was made by Hunter, Pinckney & Ann Ellery (devisee of Thomas) to lay out lot #80 in
several lots, streets, lanes, docks, & water passage, convenient for disposing of them;... now Pinckney
sells 3 divisions to Guignard.”

October 25 & 26,1773

Grantor: William Richardson & his wife, Ann Richardson of Santee in South Carolina
Grantee: George Young of Charlestown

Book and Page: Book C-5, Pages 496-503

Type: Conveyance

Much like Deed Book MM, Page 253, this deed not directly related to 12 Anson’s chain of title indicates
conveyances not indexed or no longer on file with the Records Mesne Conveyance:

“lot in Colleton Square in Charles Town adj land of Margaret Guignard, Frances Guignard, Charles
Street, part of a larger lot devised by Gabriel Guignard, deceased, to be equally divided between his three
daughters Margaret Guignard, Ann Guignard now Ann Richardson, and Frances Guignard. Ann
Richardson, wife of William Richardson, relinquished dower by a write of dedimus 13 December 1773
before Matthew Singleton and Richard Richardson.”
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April 27 & 28,1778

Grantor: Thomas Jones

Grantee: Joseph Roper

Book and Page: Book Z-4, Pages 472-476
Type: Conveyance

This deed indicates that Thomas Jones purchased part of Ann and William Richardson’s land on lot 80, a
portion of which he is now selling to Joseph Roper.

“Whereas by release dated 22 Dec 1769 between William Burrows, Esq, Master in Chancery at
Charlestown, to William Richardson of the same, Merchant, lot being part of the real estate of Gabriel
Guignard, late of said town, cooper, in Colleton Square, distinguished by the figure 6, and Said William
Richardson and Ann, his wife, conveyed 15 April last past to Thomas Jones.”

NOTE: The above iransactions are only indicators of the means through which Thomas Jones acquired
the lot on the southeast corner of Anson and Guignard. As far as this author was capable to determine,
no indexed deed traces a direct chain of title of this specific lot from a previous owner to Thomas Jones.

December 24, 1850

Grantors: Dr. Daniel Legare, Thomas S. Legare, Daniel Legare, Jr., Nathan Legare, Abigal S. Legare,
Samuel B Jones (son of Thomas L Jones, deceased), Sarah Jones, Susan Jones, Elizabeth Jones, Mary L
Jones, Mary E Buish, and Henry Boardman.

Grantees: William S Walker and David A Walker

Book & Page: M-12, 380

Type: Release

Lot: 95> by 150° by 81° by 70°

$7,000

In his will, Thomas Jones bequeathed the eastern half of his property on Anson and Guignard Streets to
Doctor Daniel Legare and the children of Dr. Daniel Legare and Elizabeth Martha Jones Legare. The
western moiety was left to Mary Jones, widow of Jones’ son Samuel, and Mary’s children. In this deed,
Doctor Daniel and his children sell this property.

“Doctor Daniel Legare, Thomas S Legare, Daniel Legare, Jr, Nathan Legare, Abigail S Legare conveyed
to William S Walker and David A Walker... all that lot piece part or parcel of land situated lying and
being in the City of Charleston on the southeast corner of Anson and Guignard Streets.”

Lists William S Walker and David A Walker as “copartners in trade as stone cutters,” which is confirmed
by the 1851 Ward Book, which lists the lot at Anson and Guignard as a “marble yard.”
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December 4, 1855

Grantors: William S and David Walker
Grantee: Doctor Daniel Legare

Book and Page: Q-13, 269

Type: Morigage

$8,126

“To the State of South Carolina —
The Bonds to secure which the Within Mortgage was executed having been satisfied I as Executor of the

Within named Daniel Legare declare the lien of the said mortgage discharged. Witness my hand and seal
this 17™ day of April 1862.” (signed) Abigail S Legare

December 2, 1876

Grantors: William S and David Walker
Grantees: Ernst Waltjen and Adolf FC Cramer
Book and Page: F-17, 153

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95° by 150” by 81’ by 70’

$1,000

December 22, 1876

Grantors: William S and David Walker
Grantees: Ernst Waltjen and Adolph Cramer
Book and Page: X-16, 452

Type: Mortgage

Lot: 95° by 150’ by 81° by 70°

$1500

“Southeast corner of Anson and Guignard Streets.”

October 7, 1878

Grantor: J Emst Waltjen
Grantee: Adolph FC Cramer
Book and Page: O-17, 160
Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95 by 150° by 81’ by 70°
$500

“...all my one half interest in, or one moiety of all that lot... on the South-East corner of Anson and
Guignard.”
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February 15, 1879

Grantor: Adolph FC Cramer
Grantee: John CH Claussen
Book and Page: O-17, 267
Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95° by 150’ by 817 by 70’
$1,000

“Extending East to Ellery Street”

April 2, 1883

Grantor: John CH Claussen
Grantee: Adolph FC Cramer
Book and Page: A-19, 694
Type: Agreement

In this agreement, Adolph FC Cramer is assigned by John CH Claussen as executor and manager of
Claussen Brewing Company, to be compensated with one-half profits of said business, minus $700 for
wear and tear of “machinery, implements and vessels,” “and the further sum of Three-thousand six
hundred Dollars being interest at the rate of six per cent per Anuum.”

In the agreement, Claussen agrees not to interfere with management, and also agrees to sell the property
to Cramer after six months.

November 1, 1884

Grantor: JCH Claussen (the Claussen Brewing Company)

Grantee: Adolph FC Cramer and Emil Kersten (doing business as Cramer and Kersten)
Book and Page: 7-19, 486

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95’ by 150’ by 81’ by 70°, combined with other properties

$39,375

The lot on Anson and Guignard was combined with lots across the street at Anson and Hayne: “All those
lots pieces and parcels of land with all the buildings thereon...formerly known as the ‘Ships Press’ but

now as the ‘Palmetto Brewing’,” also “on the Southeast corner of Anson and Guignard... being the
premises now used as a bottling house to the aforementioned Brewery.”
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March 12, 1892

Grantor; John Doscher, President Palmetto Brewery
Grantee: De La Vergne Machinery Company

Book and Page: D-21, 252

Type: Contract

The contract between the Palmetto Brewery Company and De La Vergne Machinery Company consists of
an agreement to make installment payments for ice making machinery amounting to $18,000 in value.

September 15, 1896

Grantor: BA Hagood, AFC Cramer and Special Masters
Grantee: John Doscher

Book and Page: Y-22, 89

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95’ by 150° by 81’ by 70’

$85,000

“Whereas, the De La Vergne Refrigeration Company on the 6™ Day of January in the year of our Lord
eighteen thousand nine hundred and ninety-six did file its bill in the Circuit Court of the United States...
and therefore being at issue before the Honorable Court... did order, adjudge and decree that all the real
and personal property of the Palmetto Brewing Company... be sold at auction.”

The case of the De Le Vergne Machinery Company v. Palmetto Brewery is published in legal registers of
the period. It reached the South Carolina State Supreme Court, at which point the Court found in favor of
De La Vergne Company. The property was sold at auction to John Doscher, who is listed previously as
President of the defunct Palmetto Brewing Company. While other owners Cramer and Kersten are not
mentioned in later deeds, it appears John Doscher becomes new owner of the company, shortly after this
event renaming the company “Germania Brewing Company.” See below.

September 17, 1896

Grantor: State of South Carolina

Grantee: Germania Brewing Company

Book and Page: Z-22, 70

Type: Charter

“The principle place of business will be Charleson, SC. The general purpose of the corporation and the
nature of business I proposes to do is the manufacture, purchase and sell and generally deal in beer, soda
water, ginger ale and other malt beverages . . . and carbonated waters and ale... to deal in ice and shall
have the right to rent, hire, and provide for cold storage of goods and perishable articles.”
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September 28, 1896

Grantor: John H. Doscher, et al.
Grantee: Germania Brewing Company
Book and Page: R-22, 343

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95 by 150’ by 81’ by 70°
$100,000

Granting all land belonging to the “former Palmetto Brewing Company” including brewery on Anson and
Hayne as well as the corner of Anson and Guignard (icehouse).

September 7, 1916

Grantor: State of South Carolina
Grantee: Crystal Ice Company
Book and Page: L-26, 410
Type: Charter

Requested by Gustav F Doscher.

September 5, 1916

Grantor: Germania Brewing Company, Lawrence M Pinckney

Grantee: Union Corporation

Book and Page: W-26, 495

Type: Cenveyance

Lot: 957 by 150’ by 81° by 70’ (including other lands of former Palmetto Brewery)
$20,000

“...whereas, on the 1% day of July, AD 1916, the Germania Brewing Company, a corporation under the

laws of the State of South Carolina, was duly adjudged bankrupt... and Lawrence M Pinckney was duly
appointed and qualified as Trustee of the Estate of the said Germania Brewing Company in Bankruptcy

and is now acting as said Trustee... and whereas the first meeting of creditors of the said bankrupt, held
on the 19" day of July AD 1916...a resolution was adopted as follows:

“’Resolved that the Real Estate, machinery, Engines and appurtenances of the Germania Brewing
Company be sold as a whole, ... at publi¢ auction....’

“... And whereas the said Lawrence M Pinckney, Trustee of the Estate of the Germania Brewing
Company, in Bankruptcy, having duly advertised the said property for sale for four consecutive weeks,
before the day of sale in “The News and Courier’... on the 5™ day of September AD 1916, he attended at
the place named for the sale and at the hour named therein and offered the said property (herein after
described) for sale, when the Union Corporation bid the sum of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000)
therefore which being the highest and best bid that was offered he then and there sold the same to the said
Union Corporation.”
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September 25, 1916

Grantor: Union Corporation

Grantee: Gustav F Doscher

Book and Page: W-26, 502

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95’ by 150” by 81 by 70’ (including other lands of former Palmetto Brewery)
$5

Sold for 35 plus liens on machinery.

September 26, 1916

Grantor: Gustav F Doscher

Grantee: Crystal Ice Company

Book and Page: W-26, 504

Type: Deed to Real Estate and Personality
$31,985

Including “All the engines, machinery and appurtenances to said machinery including boilers which may
be a part of said machinery and necessary for the operation and use thereof and upon the real estate herein
described.”

Additionally conveys liens on said machinery fro York Manufacturing Company, Fairbanks, Morse and
Company, and Nordberg Manufacturing Company.

November 29, 1916

Grantor: Crystal Ice Company

Grantee: Carolina Public Service Company
Book and Page: W-26, 589

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 95’ x 150" x 81’ x 70°

$35,000

Included with “All those lots three lots, picces and parcels of land with the buildings thereon situate lying
and being in the City of Charleston formerly known as the ‘Ship’s Press’ but now as the Germania

Brewery.”

Signed by GF Doscher, President of Crystal Ice Company.
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December 17,1927

" Grantor: Carolina Public Service Company

Grantee: Southern Ice Company

Book and Page: N-34, 755

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 132.4° x 195° x 132’ in total (parcel, 95’ x 150°)

“That parcel of land comprising an entire city block butting and bounding as follows: north on Hayne
Street, east on Anson Street, south on North Market Street, and on the west line on Church Street. ..
ALSO all that parcel of land on the north side of Market Street between Church and Meeting... ALSO all
that parcel of land at the Southeast corer of Anson and Guignard Streets.”

December 29, 1967

Grantor: Southern Ice Company
Grantee: Nathan S Addlestone
Book and Page: K-89, 182
Type: Conveyance

Lot: 99’ x 150’ x 151’ x 99’
$47,000

March 31, 1980

Grantors: Francis Darwin, Mary B Ford, William Jennings Ford, Gertrude Ford, David Michael Ford,
Eileen Fay Ford, John Joseph Ford, Thomas Glen Ford, Mary Kathleen Ford, Nancy Ford

Grantee: CHS Associates, a Virginia Limited Partnership

Book and Page: A-122, 340

Type: Conveyance

31

Property sold in consideration of $1. CHS Associates agrees to assume the following mortgages:
That of John Coppelman, Jr ($166,000), one of $70,000 and one of $96,000, both attributed to various of
the grantors.
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November 1, 1985

Grantor: CHS Associates, a Virginia Limited Partnership
Grantee: Ravenel, Eiserhardt and Associates

Book and Page: Book U-150, 102

Type: Conveyance

Lot: 99° x 150’ x 151’ x 9%

$614,000

Refers to “Plat of #2, #4, #6, and #8 Anson St and also the Southeast Comer of Anson and Guignard. ..
measuring and containing as a whole according to said plat... butting and bounding to the North on
Guignard; to the East on Property of Rainbow Market; to the South on property of the Hasselmeyer Co;
and to the West on Anson Street.”

December 31, 1986

Grantor: Ravenel, Eiserhardt and Associates
Grantee: Garibaldi’s, Inc.

Book and Page: B-161, 910

Type: Conveyance

$300,000

Lot A (2-12 Anson) on a plat located in Book BK, Page 115. However, only the lot upon which 12
Anson sits was actually sold, as the larger property of Ravenel, Eiserhardt and Associates was divided.

June 11, 1990

Grantor: N/A

Grantee: N/A

Book and Page: B-194, 806
Type: Correction

Corrects a typographical error in book B-161, page 910, in which the lot to be conveyed to Garibaldi’s,
Inc, by Ravenel, Eiserhardt and Associates is corrected to be Lot A of the Plat BK, Page 115 (12 Anson),
where before it was incorrectly listed as Book BK, Page 115 (2-12 Anson).

June 13, 1990

Grantor: Garibaldi’s, Inc

Grantee: William and Bette S Balish
Book and Page: B-194, 809

Type: Conveyance

$5
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December 28, 1994

Grantor: William and Bette S Balish

Grantee: Balish Properties, a Limited Partnership
Book and Page: A-251, 741

Type: Conveyance




